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Squad Thermal System (STS)

 Industry Day 2 and 3 December 2009
Questions and Answers

The following are answers to the questions received during the STS Industry day and one-on-one sessions on 2 and 3 December 2009:
Question 1:  Was the CPD published in the RFI?

A:  No.
Question 2:   Will the CPD be made available?
A: No. The CPD is a higher echelon document from which Marine Corps Systems Command derives its specifications. Since the requirement for potential Offerors is provided in a solicitation with a Performance Specification and a Statement of Work, knowledge of the CPD is redundant and confusing, and will not be separately provided.
Question 3:  Will the laser be used on the weapon?
A: It may be; there is certainly no prohibition on such a use.
Question 4:  What equipment is required for alignment at sustainment level?

A: The list of organic test equipment, to include Automated Test Equipment (ATE), General Purpose Test Equipment, and tools will be provided upon request if a solicitation is released. 
Question 5:  NV Therm – Please specify the nominal inputs for the model.
 A:  GFI Parameters:

Type of Imager= Staring

Single Frame/Gimbal Scan/ Line Scanner= No

Vertical Mechanical Interlace= 1

Horizontal Dither = No

Optics Blur Units= Milliradians in Object Space

Optics Blur Type= RMS or Standard Deviation

Vibration/Stabilization Blur- Spot Size- Horizontal= 0

Vibration/Stabilization Blur- Spot Size- Vertical= 0

Uncooled= Yes

PtSi= No

Fixed Pattern Noise= 3-D Noise

Display Type= Flat Panel (for AMLCD and OLED)

EO MUX= No

Number of Eyes Used= 1

Atmospheric Transmission (model)= ModTran

Index Structure Parameter (Turbulence)= 1.00E-14

Sensor Altitude= 0 (Km)

Aerosol Model= 5 Km Urban

Model Environment= US Standard 1976

Smoke= No

Target Contrast (RSS)= 2 (C)

Target Size=0.75 (meters) via Square Root Target Area

V50 Search= TBD  (2-3 cycles)

V50 Recognition= TBD (2-3 cycles)

V50 Identification=N/A

Max Range= 0.300 (Threshold), 0.700 (Objective)

Range Increment= 0.02 (Threshold), 0.04 (Objective)

Scene Contrast Temperature= 3.5 (K)

Gain= Varies with Range

Question 6:  What don’t you like about the Tyco 19 pin connector and do you have another pin in mind?

 A:  The Tyco 19-pin connector is not sufficiently rugged or maintainable for our application.
Question 7:  Is calibration function required on the remote keypad?

 A:  Yes.
Question 8:  Do you want zoom, cal and laser function on the keypad?

 A:  Calibration must be included.  Zoom and Laser Activation are permissible, but not required.
Question 9:  How does this program relate to the Army’s AWTS-ATO and SOCOMs CNVD weapon sight development programs?
 A:  The programs are unrelated, apart from the use of similar technology.
Question 10:  Is there a CDD for the STS?
 A:  No. The STS requirement exists as a signed CPD.
Question 11:  What is the schedule for an RFP?

 A:  No schedule exists for the release of an RFP. This program is being submitted as a Program Objective Memorandum 2012 (POM-12) initiative, which, if funded will not occur until Fiscal Year 2012 (FY12). PM ONS has requested some initiating funding prior to POM-12, but this will not guarantee an RFP.
Question 12:  Is requirement 10, “stand alone, handheld” operation meant to imply that it should operate for handheld use AND maintain it’s inherent functionality as a weapon sight (i.e. for targeting on a weapon without a DVO) OR strictly handheld??

 A:  The STS must operate both as a weapon-mounted clip-on sight AND as a stand-alone, handheld imager.
Question 13:  You require the STS be compatible with the machine gun day optic (MDO). Does the USMC anticipate that they will use the STS on the Medium weapons (M240, M249)?

 A:  In an effort to provide flexibility to the warfighter, this is a possibility that PM ONS is considering.  
Question 14:  Does the USMC anticipate that the laser pointer will include field adjustable click-adjusters or is it acceptable to factory bore sight it to the thermal?
 A:  It is acceptable to factory boresight the laser to its associated reticle, provided that an approach for USMC organic maintenance to verify and maintain the boresight has been included.
Question 15:  Can the “soft carrying case” be the same as the “tactical pouch” if it meets the requirements for the tactical pouch?
 A:  No.  The intent of the tactical pouch is to provide a small, easily portable, quick access storage system so that the operator can more easily carry the STS in the field.  The soft carrying case is intended to facilitate transport by containing all components of the STS without requiring excessive storage space in theatre.
Question 16:  Will the USMC define their organic maintenance concept for the STS?
 A: The USMC intends the STS to be maintainable at the Field Level of maintenance. The STS should not require maintenance at the sustainment level.  All tools and test equipment should be in the Marine Corps inventory.
Question 17:  Is there a desire to exceed the objective range?
A:  Once the range objective is met, there is trade space with other key parameters being weight (a KPP) and power consumption (battery life). Exceeding the range would be desirable.
Question 18:  Attribute for distortion, are there criteria for distortion?
A:  An exact specification will be published along with any RFP.  However, 5% is a safe assumption.
Question 19:  Attribute 18b, is there criteria for this and what angular motion will not occur in blur?
 A:  This will be defined at a later time. It will take into account operation in both the handheld and weapon-mounted modes.
Question 20:  Attribute 20, Image, is there a definition of the critical areas of the field of view?
 A:  Critical areas of the field of view (FOV) include the central 2/3 of the FOV by area.  This is determined by the geometry of the field of view: when used with the RCO the region is considered circular, while handheld use will likely be rectangular due to the display format.
Question 21:  Attribute 40, usable video, what does that mean?
 A:  The ‘usable video’ requirement in the Start-up Time specification requires that real-time thermal video is present within 5 seconds of STS activation.  Notably, splash screens do not qualify as usable video.
Question 22:  Attribute 45, background noise level, where?
A:  Noise emissions will be tested in an anechoic chamber.
Question 22:  Attribute 55, vibration, in the case or loose?
A:  Loose.
Question 23:  NV therm, what are the parameters for recognition and detection?
 A:    TBD (2-3 cycles on target for both detection and recognition).
Question 24:  The RFI shows 3 specific P3Is, is the scope of the P3Is to include all of the “shoulds”?
 A:  Addressing the three identified in the RFI is desired in the first round.
Question 25:  Have you looked at SWIR?
 A:  Yes, though it is not suitable for the STS program.
Question 26:  What do you mean by NDI?
A:  A Non-Developmental Item is described in FAR Part 2.101 Definitions and can be related to Commercial Items.
Question 27:  What is the timeframe for release of the RFP?
A:  See Question 11.
Question 28:  Do you want 1 or 2 batteries?
 A:  The number of batteries is not a requirement, so long as the system can meet the battery life specification.
Question 29:  What external power requirements do you want? 12v, 24v etc.
 A:  The exact voltage is not specified in order to allow some flexibility in design. The intent for the external power is to facilitate maintenance of the system.
Question 30:  Will there be a requirement for stabilization, FOV?
 A:  Image stabilization is not a requirement for STS.
Question 31:  What are the model parameters?
A:  See Question 5 for all Government Furnished Input (GFI) parameters.
Question 32:  Will Marines use the laser function on the weapon?
A:  See Question 3.
Question 33:  Will the laser be bore sighted to the barrel?
 A:  A desired P3I is to include the ability to boresight the STS laser to the weapon, but this is not a requirement at this time.
Question 34:  Should the laser be blocked in the clip-on mode?
 A:  This is not a requirement either way, but users would prefer the flexibility of using it in both modes.
Question 35:  Do you prefer an on-off capability on the remote?
 A: See Question 8.  An On/Off function on the remote is not required, but is also not forbidden.
Question 36:  Can you elaborate on the battery load/life requirements?
A:  Per the specification, the STS must be full-on operable for two hours per installed battery.
Question 37:  Are there Mil Std 1275 requirements?
A:  No.  The external power requirement is intended to facilitate laser power interlocks during maintenance rather than using vehicle power.
Question 38:  Can you elaborate on operating temperatures?
A:  The operating temperature shall be -18 to 52° C and should be -36 to 60° C.  Any claims by a vendor that exceed these parameters will be given extra credit.
Question 39:  Are any tools required?
A:  Tools are allowed to initially mount an STS to a matched weapon. Tools are also allowed to adjust the laser pointer to a weapon. Additionally a tool to remove the laser “blue blocker” (at the discretion of the unit Commander) can be used.  Beyond these examples, special tools are not allowed at the operator level, even for maintenance.  See question 4.
Question 40:  Is the VIPER-T associated with the STS?
 A:  The AN/USM-717 VIPER-T and the AN/PSM-117 Application Program Set are the expected organic Automated Test Equipment for the STS. 
Question 41:  Why is output required, for what intent?
 A:  Outputs for the STS are intended to facilitate maintenance with a video out, and data input and output feeds.
Question 42:  Is there an alternative to the Tyco 19 pin such as the Glen Air?
 A:  Any connector which is suitably rugged and can support the necessary connectivity will suffice.  A preferred approach is to provide a cable with the STS which adapts this connector into standard connectors for each signal.
Question 43:  Do you plan on a sole source or multiple awards?
A:  It is premature to answer this question, since there is no RFP solicitation.
Question 44:  Have you submitted an acquisition plan?
A:  It is being prepared.
Question 45:  Is 320x240 acceptable – what is your desire for FPA?
A:  Any FPA which allows the STS to meet the recognition requirements is acceptable.
Question 46:  What is the mission requirement/duty cycle for the battery?
A:  Per the specification, the STS must be full-on operable for two hours per installed battery.
Question 47:  Is the unit intended as a hand-held or collimator device?
 A:    See Question 48.
Question 48:  Is it primarily weapon mounted or hand-held?
 A:  The STS is expected to be used 50% in each configuration.
Question 49:  The 21 oz. weight requirement includes what?
 A:  The weight requirement includes all items required to operate the STS.  The weight will be tested with all components needed for each operational configuration separately.
Question 50:  Does anyone else meet or come close to weight and image objectives?
A:  Obviously, PM ONS cannot answer this question.
Question 51:  What is the combined weight of the two items currently being used that are being replaced?
A:  The MTI and IWNS-T weigh a combined 34.5oz.
Question 52:  Is weapons use a priority over hand-held?
 A:  No.  Both modes are weighted equally.
Question 53:  1.5 cycles on target – can you clarify?
A:  3 detector pixels on target at specified rage.
Question 54:  Will weapon shock parameters be provided to attribute #57?

A:  If an RFP is posted, the weapons shock parameters will be provided.
Question 55: Can the electrical and/or mechanical interface control drawings be provided for the AN/PVQ-31A/B Rifle Combat Optic?

A: The AN/PVQ-31A/B will be provided as Government Furnished Equipment (GFE) during the solicitation period if an RFP is released.
Question 56: Can the solution involve replacing the AN/PVQ-31 RCO with an integrated thermal/day optic?

A: No.
Question 57: Is the minimum storage temperature supposed to be -40° C instead of 40° C as stated in Attribute #49?
A: Yes. It was a typo on the presentation.
Question 57: What is the AAO for the STS?

A: The AAO has not been finalized, and it is Marine Corps policy to maintain this internally.

